
NOTE: THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO REVISION UP TO 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING DATE AND TIME (NMSA 10-15-1 F). A COPY OF THE 
AGENDA MAY BE PICKED UP AT CITY HALL, 360 RIO COMMUNITIES BLVD, RIO COMMUNITIES, NM 87002. IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY 
WHO IS IN NEED OF A READER, AMPLIFIER, QUALIFIED SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER OR ANY OTHER FORM OF AUXILIARY AND OR SERVICE TO ATTEND OR 
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE MUNICIPAL CLERK AT 505-861-6803 AT LEAST ONE WEEK PRIOR TO THE MEETING OR AS SOON AS 
POSSIBLE. 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, February 24, 2025 6:00 PM 

Agenda 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lawrence R. Gordon 

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Consent Agenda  

1. Approval of Minutes Regular Business Meeting January 27, 2025, City Council Workshop February 10, 
2025, Regular Business Meeting February 10, 2025 

2. Approval of Accounts Payable  
3. Swearing in Roy Hubbard as Clerk Treasurer  

Public Comment: The Council will take public comments in written format. These should be emailed to 
admin@riocommunities.net through 4:45 PM on Monday, February 24, 2025. These comments will be distributed to 
all Councilors for review. If you wish to speak during the public comment session, the Council will allow each member 
of the public to three (3) minutes to address the Council.  Both the public and Council will follow rules of 
decorum.  Give your name and where you live.  The public will direct comments to the City Council.  Comment(s) will 
not be disruptive or derogatory. 

The Council will not take action or engage in discussion regarding the comments made or received, but when 
appropriate the matters raised may be referred to staff or others for further review. Both the public and Council will 
follow rules of decorum. Derogatory Comments or matters under litigation will not be allowed and any person or 
persons addressing the Council are liable for their own statements, not the Council. Statements are limited to a 
maximum of 3 minutes duration. Please give your name and where you live for the record. 

Manager Report 

Action Items 
4. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025-06 Grant 23-DG-11030000-008   Between 

State of New Mexico. Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department and the City of Rio 
Communities Wildland Tools and Equipment 

5. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025-07 Governmental Services Between State 
of New Mexico, Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department and the City of Rio Communities 
for a Wildland Fire Coordinator 

6. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Elimination of the Second Deputy Clerk Position 
7. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Establishment of Human Resources Coordinator Position 
8. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Pland Collaborative Landscape Architectural Design and 

Consultation for Veterans Memorial Conceptual Study 
9. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Pland Collaborative Landscape Architectural Design and 

Consultation for Parks Development in Rio Communities 
10. Discussion/Information Only – Presentation by Geno Zamora, Esq. regarding the Governmental Code 

of Conduct and Open Meetings Act Training Updates 

 
Council Discussion 

Adjourn 

Please  join us from the comfort and safety of your own home by entering the following link: @ 
https://www.facebook.com/riocommunities 

Council may be attending the Municipal Day held in Santa Fe NM at the La 
Fonda Hotel February 27 - 28, 2025. A possible quorum may be in 

attendance. 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 1 of 7 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, January 27, 2025 6:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon 

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez 

Call to Order 

Mayor Pro Tem Gordon called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Councilor Nelson led the pledge of allegiance  

Roll Call 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                    Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                  Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon                                 
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                           Police Chief Felix Nunez   
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                Fire Chief Andrew Tabet 
Councilor Matthew Marquez                                     City Attorney Cori Strife 
                                                                                         Finance Officer Roy Hubbard 

Approval of Agenda 

Motion made by Councilor Apodaca to approve the agenda as written. Seconded by Councilor Nelson 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Approval of the Consent Agenda  

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by Councilor Apodaca  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Public Comment:  

Zeke Esquibel from New Mexico Water Authorities stated that he would like to talk a little bit about 
the utility easement and how it may affect the water department and is requesting Council doesn’t 
make a decision on this before talking with the New Mexico Water Authorities. 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 2 of 7 

Manager Report 

Donald Chavez talked about meeting with the state legislator and explained they have a Bill for the NM 
Dahl Sheep and stated that they are New Mexico heritage breed of livestock and stated he is wanting 
to go back to the State legislator to get some more protection on them. He stated that he has caught a 
few and is working to keep them alive before they go into extinction and also talked about having a 
nature center and an exhibit for the Dahl Sheep, he then went over the history of the Dahl Sheep. Mr. 
Chavez requested the Council talk with the State legislators to get funding for an exhibition for the 
Dahl Sheep in our community.   

City Manager Dr. Moore talked about the streetlights on Horner and stated that the project will be 
started. He then talked about Goodman Ave. project and stated work will be started.  

City Manager Dr. Moore gave an update on the Code of Conduct and ethics and stated it is being 
prepared and will have them ready in February. He then talked about the appointment of the 
Municipal Judge and Judge pro tem and stated the Mayor has been looking for someone to fill these 
positions and they will be bringing this up as an action item in February.  

Councilor Marquez asked if the Council could have the information on the Judge before they are 
appointed.  

Mayor Ramsell stated that the information on the Judge will go out to Council.  

Councilor Marquez asked about the EDC website and asked if Sunny 505 has given City Permissions. 

Action Items 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Truck Bypass Agreement to Grant Public Road and Utility 
Easement, Grant Easement for Public Road Supplement Easement and Vacation Agreement    

City Manger Dr. Moore went over the contract and explained the areas in the contract that was 
updated by Council request.  

City Manger went over the rail crossing and stated that the landowner set aside the City be responsible 
for the maintenance.  

Councilor Nelson stated that parcel 18b needs to be removed and that parcel is not connected to the 
road. 

Councilor Marquez stated that if 18b is not connected to that lot that needs to be taken out and asked 
City Manager Dr. Moore to explain what alternate summary procedures are.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that an alternate summary procedure is the existing procedure in 
the City of Rio communities without a reset division of lots, provided that, you don't have any increase 
in the number of lots permissible and what that means is a walk through for a single plat process as 
opposed to a preliminary plat process.   

Councilor Nelson asked Dr. Moore to read the top two lines of the Agreement.  

City Manager Dr. Moore read: “The subdivision tracks 18A/18B to one or more resub division. Utility 
easements will be completed and access to new road easements on the extended railroad easement to 
replant on resub division cost. Consist of the combination of recombination portions of previously 
planted that it does not increase the total number of lots and is eligible for the alternate summary 
procedure under Subdivisions Ordinance 621, provided the proposed subdivision meets the criteria for 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 3 of 7 

the alternate summary procedure which provides an exemption for new understanding, new 
subdivision review and approval procedure”. 

City Attorney Strife explained that an alternative summary plat procedure is: they bring it to the City 
for approval and it would go back to planning and zoning with the final plat. So, they would go through 
planning and zoning and the council, so this is like a planning phase and the final phase. In this case, 
what we are saying is that if they're not changing the way the property is laid out. She explained with 
18a and 18b why those are connected even though 18b is not implicated in this situation what it is 
saying is that as long as 18a and 18b remain in the same 2 parcels and that they're not increasing 
anything or adjusting their acreage to redraw that line and so if it was 66 acres and they wanted to 
change it to say 48 acres, they would have to go through the same approval process. She explained 
that it is a benefit to the city if they want to change the way 18b is laid out; the city will have the ability 
to have access to those easements. 

City Manager explained the warranty of title issue and explained that the City would own the road and 
not the land itself. 

Councilor Nelson asked if they own the land, they will still be taxed but it says property will be exempt 
from taxes.  

City Attorney Strife explained that the road will be exempt because you can’t tax the City, but the 98 
acres of land would still be taxable because the City owns the road not the land.  

Councilor Nelson stated that he thinks that NM Water engineers need to work with the city engineers 
before we go forward on this.  

Council Marquez asked if NM Water could voice their concerns. He then asked why Playa Vista was the 
one who requested the zone change and now the easement is requested by Petroyates.  

City Attorney Strife explained that Petroyates is a shareholder and that is why his name is on this 
agreement. 

Councilor Marquez asked how much it would cost to resurface the road when it needs to be resurfaced 
and stated that it would cost $1 million to repave the road. Marquez stated if the roads are being used 
by the Yates and the Wind turbine, should the city add that they are responsible for maintaining the 
road and not be the responsibility of the city? 

City Attorney Strife stated that this is a planning stage so no and since this part of the community will 
be paying taxes on the property and this isn’t the appropriate time to add this to the agreement and 
should have been brought up in an earlier conversation.  

Councilor Nelson stated that the road isn’t on City property so they would not be paying City taxes and 
that they are getting tax breaks.  

Councilor Marquez explained that the cost of maintaining the road would not match the taxes.  

City Attorney stated that is a valid concern but in this stage it is just to get the approval to build this 
road and to be able to have citizens use the road.   

Councilor Nelson stated that he would like to see where the Department of Transportation signed off 
on this road and where the bond is for this road.  

City Manger Dr. Moore stated that the State of New Mexico is funding this road.  

Councilor Nelson asked for that documentation and asked why all the parcels are listed.  



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 4 of 7 

City Attorney explained all the parcels are listed because those are the parcels that were listed in the 
rezone the City did a few months back re-zoned.  

Councilor Nelson talked about the sewer line and stated that the City needs to take that into 
consideration.  

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that we are not touching the NM Water easements.  

Councilor Nelson asked NM Water if they had a proposal for an additional water line to go out towards 
that way.  

Mr. Esquibel from NM Water stated that they do have future plans to do an interconnection.  

City Attorney Strife explained that what is in place now will not go away and referred to paragraph 
four.   

Mrs Apodaca from NM Water stated so we are clear you are not asking us to relocate any of our 
infrastructure then we are ok with that and stated that with their future planes they would still like to 
meet with the engineers. 

Councilor Nelson talked about how the trucks could affect the sewer line.  

Councilor Marquez stated that this needs to be addressed now so the City isn’t responsible if there was 
a sewer line breakage.   

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve truck bypass agreement to grant public road and utility 
easement, grant easement for public road supplement easement and vacation agreement. Seconded 
by Councilor Apodaca.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote 

    

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025- 03 Declare 94 Olson a Dangerous and 
Nuisance Dangerous Property 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained this has been in front of the Council before and there were a few 
changes in the language and is requesting approval.   

Motion made Councilor Apodaca approve resolution 2025-03 Declaring 94 Olson a dangerous 
property. Seconded by Councilor Gordon. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025-04 Budget Adjustment 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025-05 Second Quarter Financial Report 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 5 of 7 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that there were a few small bumps in the road.  

Finance officer Hubbard stated there were a few glitches with the software he recommends moving 
the two action items to a special meeting.  

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to table these items. Seconded by Councilor Marquez. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – City Spring Event 

City Manger Dr. Moore explained there was some discussion awhile back on having a Spring event and 
he is asking Council for direction on how to handle this.  

Councilor Marquez stated that he talked to Dr. Moore, and he brought the agenda, Councilor Marquez 
went over the agenda he made for the Sprin event that included overtime for the Police, Public Works 
and the Fire Department, he talked about using the Axillary 5013c to help with the cost of the event 
and sated he has talked to the librarian about utilizing items in the makers space to for engraving and 
other projects that may be needed. He stated that the committee he has put together for this event 
includes himself, Monique Marquez, Loedi Silva and Randy Gettings.  

City Attorney explained in order for the City to hold an event there needs to be a committee that has 
been vote on by Council.  

Council Discussion 

Councilor Marquez stated that he would like to see the EDC website up and running.  

Councilor Gordon talked about the Martin Luther King visual in Belen and thanked everyone in the 
community who attended.  

Councilor Nelson asked for a take home vehicle policy and employee list.  

Councilor Marquez asked if the City is going to the Round house. He stated that he spoke with Senator 
Stefanics, and she was under the impression that Dr. Moore was going to the Round House on Friday.  

Councilor Apodaca asked about the Veterans Memorial.  

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that he is looking at having something for the Council in February with 
a proposal.  

Mayor Ramsell EDC website to contact City Hall and talked about the truck bypass and there is no 
nuclear waste being transported through the City. The bypass road will be used to keep big trucks from 
going through the city,  

 

Executive Session - For the purpose of Appointment of Clerk Treasurer and Police Chief Evaluation 
pursuant to NMSA 10-15-1(H)(2) - Limited Personnel Matters  
Motion and roll call vote to go into closed session 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 6 of 7 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to go int closed session for the purpose of Appointment of Clerk 
Treasure and Police Chief Evaluation. Seconded by Councilor Gordon.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote at 8:15 pm. 
 

 
  Motion and roll call vote to go back into the regular business meeting session 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson. Seconded by Councilor Gordon 8:41 pm. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote at 8:41 pm. 
 
Welcome everyone back and statement by the Mayor: 
 
Motion made by Councilor Gordon to accept the welcome back statement by the Mayor. Seconded by 
Councilor Nelson.   
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote at 

  

Action Items 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Appointment of Clerk Treasurer 

No decision was made.  

Adjourn 
Motion made by Councilor Gordon to adjourn. Seconded by Councilor Apodaca. Motion carried at 8:43 
pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Dr. Martin Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes January 27, 2025 Page 7 of 7 

  

 
 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Councilor 

Jimmie Winters, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Workshop Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Workshop 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, February 10, 2025 5:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at 5:02 PM  

Attendees 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                    Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                  Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon                                 
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                           City Attorney VanVleck 
Councilor Art Apodaca (Via phone)                          Finance Officer Roy Hubbard 
Councilor Matthew Marquez                                    
 
Public Comment:  

No public comments.  

Discussion – Universal Waster Franchise Agreement 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained the current Universal Waste contract. 

Councilor Marquez stated that under term and renewals it is a 10-year contract. He stated he went 
over some contracts from other Municipalities and they are only 5 or 6 years. He stated he believes 10 
years is too long.  

City Attorney VanVleck stated that the city isn’t purchasing anything, so this doesn’t fall under state 
procurement. He explained that this is a franchise agreement, and it is up to the Council how long they 
want the contract to be; It is a time intensive process that the City would have to go through every 4 or 
6 years.  

Universal Waste Manager Mr. Byers explained that in the last contract the City was responsible for 
past debt and in this contract, Universal Waste will take care of past debt.  

Councilor Nelson stated they were asking for 20 years, and the city negotiated it for 10 years.  

City Attorney VanVleck stated that this is a standard contract.  

Councilor Marquez stated the city should start the fees at five (5%) percent.  

Mayor Ramsell explained that it is a gradual increase over the years.  

Councilor Marquez stated that the language in the contract was changed.  

City Attorney VanVleck stated that he changed the language to protect the city from any form of 
litigation.  

Councilor Marquez went over Collection and Enforcement. He stated that if a customer is delinquent 
over 30 days they should be given more time to pay the reminder of their late balance.    



 

Council Workshop Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 2 of 3 

Regan Vaughn explained that there is software they are working on to send emails and other 
reminders of billing.  

Councilor Marquez asked how many bad debts are tied to the City of Rio Communities. 

 Mrs. Vaugn stated that 140 accounts for a total of $97,858.73 over the past 4 years.  

City Attorney stated that the detail is how the city enforces it which is through court and stated that it 
could take a long time. Suspending services is a better option.  

There was discussion over the rate increase over time. 

Councilor Apodaca stated that he feels Universal Waste is doing everything they can to help the city.  

Councilor Marquez talked about roll-off containers and the contract states that only Universal Waste 
can provide roll-offs and no one else. He stated that if a trailer has a company logo on it, they can’t 
dump at the transfer station. He talked about helping the small businesses in the city and giving them a 
chance. 

City Attorney VanVleck explained that Universal Waste Services could subcontract roll-off services, 
which means anyone that wants to provide roll off services would have to go through UWS. 

Mr. Byers stated that the city gets the franchise fee.  

Councilor Marquez stated that if we let another company come in then they would have to pay the 
same franchise fee.   

Mr. Byers stated that Universal Waste Services gives the city 16 free roll-offs a year. He stated that if 
that service is open, they will have to raise the rates.  

Marquez asked about the increase. 

Ms. Vaugn stated that they are starting out at $2 dollars the first year and then $1 every year after to 
pay back the past debt and not hit the residents too hard.  

Councilor Marquez stated he didn’t see the $2.00. 

Ms. Vaugh explained the contract and stated that it was added in 2025 and was negotiated in the 
meetings with Councilor Nelson and Councilor Gordon.  

Mayor Ramsell talked about the monthly price.   

Ms. Vaughn stated that 453 of the accounts in the city are under the Veteran, Senior Citizen or low-
income discount. 

Councilor Marquez asked about the roll off prices and asked if there shouldn’t be an adjustment 
between a 10 yard and a 40 yard roll off.   

Mr. Byers stated that it’s for every 10 yards and yes, the numbers will change. They will need to 
address that.  

 
Mayor Ramsell stated it is 6:00pm and the Council will need to adjourn this meeting.  
 
 
 
 

 



 

Council Workshop Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
_________________________________________  
Roy Hubbard, Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

 
 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 1 of 6 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, February 10, 2025 6:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon 

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez 

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm.  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Councilor Nelson led the pledge of allegiance.  

Roll Call 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                    Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                  Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon                                 
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                           Police Chief Felix Nunez   
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                Fire Chief Andrew Tabet 
Councilor Matthew Marquez                                     City Attorney Randy Van Vleck 
                                                                                         Finance Officer Roy Hubbard 

Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Ramsell amended the agenda to remove action item #3 

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve the agenda with the change as stated. Seconded by 
Councilor Nelson.   
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to remove the minutes and stated that more discussion needs to be 
added to the bypass road and to approve the accounts payable. Seconded by Councilor Marquez.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 
 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 2 of 6 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to table the minutes and stated that there was a lot of discussion, 
and he thinks the discussion needs to be in the minutes and is tabling the minutes until he can review 
the audio, and he can see what needs to be in the minutes. Seconded by Councilor Marquez.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Public Comment:  

Dick Irvin Western Drive: Talked about adopting a dog from the Valencia County animal shelter and 
stated that 43 percent of cats and dogs are euthanized and suggests that the city hold an adoption 
event. He stated that Valencia County Animal Shelter could use some donations of food and supplies. 
He then talked about a reception he went to at the VA hospital and how phenomenal the staff is. He 
then talked about a Valentines craft fair and talked about small business not getting enough support.  

Manager Report 

City Manager Dr. Moore talked about streetlight repairs that will be happening around the City. He 
then talked about having park dedication of Chamesa park on Saturday March 1st, 2025; weather 
permitting.  

Councilor Marquez asked if the City would designate a name for that park.  

Mayor Ramsell stated that there is a process, and the city will have to look into it. He stated as of right 
now it is called Chamesa Park 

Councilor Nelson stated that he will not be available on that date.  

Action Items 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2025-04 Budget Adjustment 

Finance Officer Hubbard stated that with this budget adjustment it is $70,000 from DOH for the EMS 
Fund that needs to be approved for quarterly LGBMS reporting and to add account codes to the 
financial software. 

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve resolution 2025-04 Budget adjustment. Seconded by 
Councilor Apodaca.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Appoint a Spring Event Committee 

Mayor Ramsell stated that he talked to Dr. Moore and Finance officer Hubbard about the cost the City 
would have to front a head of time.  



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 3 of 6 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that the city would need to have about $6,000 in overtime that 
includes PERA, common deductions and taxes.   

Finance Officer Hubbard stated that he believes that $6,000 would not hinder the city.  

Councilor Marquez stated that the committee would be Himself, Monique Marquez, Andrew Tabet Fire 
Chief, Amanda Carasco Library pending, City Manager Dr. Moore, Randy Gettings, Loedi Silva and 
possibly another member of the Fire Departments auxiliary.  

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to appoint a Committee with the members that Councilor Marquez 
has been working with, the City Manager and an additional Council Member.  

Motion made by Councilor Nelson. Seconded by Councilor Marquez. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Valencia County Sheriff Department Update 

Police Chief Nunez stated that the city had received a letter from Valencia County Sheriff’s Office 
stating that they would suspend services to the city. He stated that he met with the Sherriff, and she 
explained that with limited personnel it is hard for them to cover the city and the whole county. Chief 
Nunez stated that as of right now it is only me, Seargeant Rodriguez and Officer Mendoza. He 
explained that the city cannot offer a 24/7 police department at this time. He stated he talked to the 
Sherriff about the staffing issues Rio Communities' is facing. He talked about having to find money for 
the city to be self-sufficient and explained that the city needs to find a way to bring in more funding.  

Councilor Apodaca stated that the city has more than one issue and stated that even with full funding 
it will be a challenge to recruit officers. Apodaca stated that Council needs to work on getting some tax 
increases to get the funds they need.  

Councilor Marquez asked what time the bulk of call volume is.  

Police Chief Nunez stated that it depends on what is going on and explained in the summer months 
there will be more calls in the late evenings.  

Councilor Nelson stated that if Council would have known about the letter earlier, they could have 
offered assistance.  

Council Discussion 

Mayor Ramsell stated that Seargent Rodrigez was told by a resident thank you for being out there and 
giving out speeding tickets; thanked the police department for doing a great job. 

Councilor Nelson asked about the bypass road documents he requested and asked Dr. Moore if the city 
has them on hand. He then asked if the City has reviewed them. 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that the city does not have them on hand, and he has been working on 
getting them. He thanked everyone that went to Santa Fe for representing the County.  



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 4 of 6 

Councilor Apodaca stated he wants to start discussions as soon as possible to raise taxes for our Police 
Department and stated that even when the tax increase is passed there is a time delay, and this is a 
critical issue, and the City needs to fund the Police and Fire Department.  

Councilor Marquez requested that Council receive key access to the building during business hours; he 
stated that there have been multiple times he needed access to the common area and as a Council 
member he needs to be able to do business during regular business hours. He talked about small 
businesses not having enough support from the city and asked about the EDC website and asked if the 
website goes to Dr. Moore. 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that small business can go to the Valencia Cambers of Commreance or 
the business incubator and stated that as a city to directly support a private business is a violation of 
the State Constitution.  

Councilor Marquez asked if the EDC website is there to support small business.  

City Manger Dr. Moore explained the city is working on combining the website and stated that it is very 
important to the city to have small business.  

Councilor Marquez asked for more information about Public Works having more dumpsters for the City 
Clean up. He then thanked the Police and Fire Department for all the good things they do for the city. 

Councilor Gordon stated he wanted to address a Facebook post he saw and stated that it made it seem 
like the City Council does not do things for the city, he explained that Councilors are getting grants, 
going to Santa Fe and are part of committees and are working hard to promote the city. The post made 
it seem like only one member of Council is working hard to do those things and he stated all of Council 
is working hard to promote the City.  

Mayor Ramsell stated that all of Council and staff and our elected officials in Santa Fe are working hard 
to promote the city. He then explained that City Cleanup is on the third Saturdays and stated that if 
residents see trash on the side of the road to contact City Hall and let them know. He then talked 
about the Incubator and stated that they are running off Volunteers and they are facing some staffing 
issues. He then thanked all small business and the home businesses in the city for their business.   

Executive Session - For the purpose of Appointment of Clerk Treasurer pursuant to NMSA 10-15-
1(H)(2) - Limited Personnel Matters  

 Motion and roll call vote to go into close session 

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to go into closed session for the purpose of appointment of Clerk 
Treasurer pursuant to NMSA 10-15-1(H)(2) - Limited Personnel Matters. Seconded by Councilor Nelson. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote at 8:00 pm. 

   

 

 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 5 of 6 

 Motion and roll call vote to go back into the regular business meeting session 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to go back into regular business meeting session. Seconded by 
Councilor Gordon.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson  
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote at 8:35pm 

 Welcome everyone back and statement by the Mayor: 

Motion made by Councilor Gordon the approve the Statement by the Mayor. Seconded by Councilor 
Nelson.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 

Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Appointment of Clerk Treasurer 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to approve the appointment of Roy Hubbard as the Clerk/Treasurer. 
Seconded by Councilor Marquez.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson  

Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote 

Adjourn 

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to adjourn. Seconded by Councilor Gordon motion caried at 8:36 
pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Roy Hubbard, Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

 
 
 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes February 10, 2025 Page 6 of 6 

 
 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 

















































 

Pla n d C ol la b orat iv e ,  6 00  1 s t  S treet  N W,  S u ite  100 ,  A lb uq uer que ,  NM 8 71 02  
PHO NE 5 05. 268 .22 66   F A X 5 05. 265 .96 37   p l an d co l la b. co m  

February 14, 2025 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Martin Moore, Ph.D. 
City Manager    
360 Rio Communities Blvd 
Rio Communities, NM 87002 
 
 
Re: Veterans Memorial Conceptual Study 
 
Dr. Moore: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide landscape architectural design and consultation for the proposed Rio 
Communities Veterans Memorial. We understand that the City wishes to study potential locations for the 
memorial, develop design concepts, and identify rough order of magnitude for development costs. We understand 
that there may be up to three (3) potential locations for consideration, one in the existing developed park space 
north of City Hall and the others at potentially undeveloped locations in the community. Pland proposes to visit Rio 
Communities to discuss the project with the stakeholder group, share examples of previous monuments, and visit 
the proposed locations.  Based on that meeting, Pland will prepare conceptual layouts along with rough order of 
magnitude for development costs. After review and comment from the City, Pland will prepare a final design 
concept graphic suitable for fundraising and public display. The goal is to assist Rio Communities with identifying a 
path forward for future design and implementation of the Veterans Memorial. Per your request, Pland is pleased 
to offer Rio Communities the following services: 
 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY PLAND COLLABORATIVE 
 
1. Site Visit and Programming Meeting: Pland will attend an in-person kick-off meeting to meet with project 

stakeholders to review common veterans memorial considerations and discuss ideas for the Rio 
Communities memorial.  We will also participate in a site visit to the possible locations for the memorial 
and discuss site development considerations. Pland will document the meeting discussion and site visit 
findings for inclusion in the final document. 
 

2. Initial Conceptual Design: Based on the Site Visit and Programming Meeting, Pland will prepare concept 
layouts for the potential sites along with a rough order of magnitude for development costs. Pland will 
present these options to the stakeholder group in an online meeting for discussion and feedback. The goal 
of this meeting will be to identify which site is most appropriate and to receive feedback on the 
conceptual design for this location. 
 

3. Final Concept Design: Based on the feedback received on the initial conceptual designs, Pland will prepare 
an updated concept for the selected site and along with updated costs. Pland will present the final 
concept to the City Council and/or stakeholder group at a meeting in Rio Communities. 

Pland expects to spend approximately 60 hours on the project. We anticipate the development of 3-4 sheets of 
analysis, drawings and supporting images. We propose the following fees for the above work, payable upon 
presentation of a monthly statement as the project progresses:  

1. Site Visit and Programming Meeting $1,500.00 
2. Initial Conceptual Design     $2,234.32 



Page 2 of 2 
 

3. Final Conceptual Design $3,234.32 
 

Items #1 through #3 above:                                                                                                      $6,968.64  
NMGRT 7.625%                         $    531.36 
Grand Total              $7,500.00 
 
Please note that this proposal is intended to be a first step to the eventual implementation of a veterans memorial. 
Additional design services will likely be necessary to complete the design, prepare construction plans, and assist 
the City with obtaining a qualified contractor for construction. 
                                                   

 If the overall scope of work were to change substantially for the project (i.e., by more than 10%), we would 
appreciate your consideration of a renegotiation of our fee.  
 
If these terms are agreeable to you, please sign a copy of this proposal and email it back to us at 
rloftis@plandcollab.com. We will be happy to begin our work promptly upon receipt of the signed proposal. 
 
Thank you again for thinking of us for this important project for the City of Rio Communities. We look forward to 
collaborating with you in the months to come. 
 
PLAND COLLABORATIVE 
 

 
 
Robert Loftis, FASLA 
Principal Landscape Architect 
 
Acceptable: 
 
 
                                                                                _______________________  
Dr. Martin Moore                                                                       Date 
City Manager 
Rio Communities 



 

Pla n d C ol la b orat iv e ,  6 00  1 s t  S treet  N W,  S u ite  100 ,  A lb uq uer que ,  NM 8 71 02  
PHO NE 5 05. 268 .22 66   F A X 5 05. 265 .96 37   p l an d co l la b. co m  

February 14, 2025 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Martin Moore, Ph.D. 
City Manager    
360 Rio Communities Blvd 
Rio Communities, NM 87002 
 
 
Re: Park Planning Update 
 
Dr. Moore: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide continued landscape architectural design and consultation for parks 
development in Rio Communities. We understand that the City wishes to revisit the Parks Master Plan developed 
by Pland Collaborative in 2021 to determine a location for an initial parks construction project. We understand that 
the City wishes to study potential locations for the park improvements and to develop further design concepts and 
identify a rough order of magnitude for development costs. We understand that there may be up to three (3) 
potential locations for consideration, one near City Hall and the others at potentially undeveloped locations in the 
community. Pland proposes to visit Rio Communities to discuss the project with the stakeholder group, review the 
findings of the 2021 report, and visit the proposed locations. Based on that meeting, Pland will prepare conceptual 
layouts along with identifying a rough order of magnitude for development costs. After review and comment from 
the City, Pland will prepare a final design concept graphic suitable for fundraising and public display. The goal is to 
assist Rio Communities with identifying a path forward for future design and implementation of the park 
improvements. Per your request, Pland is pleased to offer Rio Communities the following services: 
 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY PLAND COLLABORATIVE 
 
1. Site Visit and Programming Meeting: Pland will attend an in-person kick-off meeting to meet with project 

stakeholders to review the 2021 report and to discuss ideas for the park improvements. We will also 
participate in a site visit to the possible locations for the project and discuss site development 
considerations. Pland will document the meeting discussion and site visit findings for inclusion in the final 
document. 
 

2. Initial Conceptual Design: Based on the Site Visit and Programming Meeting, Pland will prepare concept 
layouts for the potential sites along with a rough order of magnitude of development costs. Pland will 
present these options to the stakeholder group in an online meeting for discussion and feedback. The goal 
of this meeting will be to identify which site is most appropriate and to receive feedback on the 
conceptual design for this site. 
 

3. Final Concept Design: Based on the feedback received on the initial conceptual designs, Pland will prepare 
an updated concept for the selected site and along with updated costs. Pland will present the concept to 
the City Council and/or stakeholder group at a meeting in Rio Communities. 

Pland expects to spend approximately 60 hours on the project. We anticipate the development of 3-4 sheets of 
analysis, drawings and supporting images. We propose the following fees for the above work, payable upon 
presentation of a monthly statement as the project progresses:  

1. Site Visit and Programming Meeting $1,500.00 



Page 2 of 2 
 

2. Initial Conceptual Design     $2,234.32 
3. Final Conceptual Design $3,234.32 

 
Items #1 through #3 above:                                                                                                      $6,968.64  
NMGRT 7.625%                         $    531.36 
Grand Total              $7,500.00 
 
Please note that this proposal is intended to be a first step towards the eventual implementation of the park 
improvements. Additional design services will likely be necessary to complete the design, prepare construction 
plans, and assist the City with obtaining a qualified contractor for construction. 
                                                   

 If the overall scope of work were to change substantially for the project (i.e., by more than 10%), we would 
appreciate your consideration of a renegotiation of our fee.  
 
If these terms are agreeable to you, please sign a copy of this proposal and email it back to us at 
rloftis@plandcollab.com. We will be happy to begin our work promptly upon receipt of the signed proposal. 
 
Thank you again for thinking of us for this important project for the City of Rio Communities. We look forward to 
collaborating with you in the months to come. 
 
PLAND COLLABORATIVE 
 

 
 
Robert Loftis, FASLA 
Principal Landscape Architect 
 
Acceptable: 
 
 
                                                                                _______________________  
Dr. Martin Moore                                                                       Date 
City Manager 
Rio Communities 


	CC 02.24.25.pdf
	CC minutes 01.27.25.pdf
	02.10.25.pdf
	CC 2.10.25.pdf
	ACCOUNT PAYABLE 2.24.25.pdf
	sharpcopier67@gmail._20250220_164445 (002).pdf
	sharpcopier67@gmail._20250220_164452.pdf
	HR JOB DISCRIPTION.pdf
	Rio Communities Veterans Memorial 2025.pdf
	Rio Communities Parks Planning 2025.pdf

